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SENATOR WESLEY L. LANCE (THE CHAIRMAN): Gentlemen, the purpose
of this hearing is to discuss Assembly Bill 323 which has already
passed the House together wifh»such other-sugge§£ions as may be
put forth concerning fhe compqsiiion and the'proceQurexfor the
State Division of Tax Appeals. Basically, it seems that there
are’sevefal problems: first, io what extent should the members
of this Board be attorneys—at-law;"secbnd, should it be part-
time or full time; third,'what}salary adjustments should be
made if the Board members must devote full time;'fourfh, as to
the procedure, to what extend should a sihgle member of the Board
be permitted to give a decision which would be a final decision
in behalf of the Whole Board or to what extent should a panel of
two or more members be used or should there be certain circum-
stances where it would be mandatory or discretionary for a panel
.to be used alﬁhough in most circumstances a single Board member
would give the decision; and fifth, what other changes. in pro-
cedure and over all éupervision should be discussed?

Sitting with me is Senator Hillery, gnother member of the
Senate Judiciary Committee, ’

Our first witness‘is Mr. Labreque, who is President or ,
Chairman of the existing State Division of Tax Appeals. And he
has very kindly consented to come and give us a statement on
this subject. Mr. Labreqﬁe." | |

MR, THEODORE J. LABREQUE: Gentlémen, members of the Senate
Commission: I have here with me'today our secretary, Mr. Carlin,
and the remaining members of the Division; We purposely carried
over our méeting ofllast week until today so that we might be

available for the Committee and when I am finished, if there is






any informatioﬁ which they can supply or if tﬁey can be of any
assistance, they are at your service,-

It is my feeling and that of my colieégues on the Division
that the enactmeﬂ£,of.Assémbly 323 as presently amended will
go a long Way towards clearing up the current backlog of the
Division of Tax Appeals and placing its work on a current
basis.: | ‘

The present setup of the Division is the result, as you know,
of several related pieces of législation.enacted in previous
years, as subsequently amended by Chapter 1@1 of the Laws of
1946, The Division itéelf was formerly known as the State Board
of Tax Appéals and assumed its présent title on July 1, 194l.

I will not take time to go into the jurisdiction which has been
bestowed upon thé‘Division.by various legislative enactmenis;
Suffice it to say that the Division is clothe& with jurisdiction‘
to hear two geheral types of appeals:  Appeals from County Boafds
of TaXation.which inVolve among other things local .valuations,
discrimination and County.Equalization, and appeals from the
Director of the Division of Taxation which includes corporation
taxes of various types, franchise taxes, béverage taxes, cigarette
taxes, railroad taxes and a number of others, including schéol'
aid appeal%‘under the'provisiéns of R.S, 5L: 1-35.1 et seq.

Under R;So SL:2-18 authority is given for the hearing of

cases by panels of two or more members of the Division, at

least one of whom shall be an attorney-at-law. These panels are

directed to take testimony and to report "on such matter and

‘the testimony so taken" to the Division, but it provides that no

detérminﬁtion_shall be made thérein except by the Division, The
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reports are réquired to be in writing and signed by the members

of the panel and must include in substance the facts and the

particulars of the testimqny’so taken., The Division is authorized

to dispose of the case on ihe basis of the report of ihe»panel

without having a transcript of the testimony and without seeing

thevwitnessesai o ‘ .
~In practice, practically all hearings of the Division have

been conducted by panels of two or more members, But these

panei repoftsg while required only to refer to the facts, have

now come to consist of a factual‘review’and analysis, plus |

recommended findings of fact and ConqluéiOns of law, It is not

unusual for the panel report to consist of thirty or more pages,

although the average length is less thén'thisa Our secretéry

here has sOmevgamples of these panel reports, somé of which are

current and some of which are in the past, but they will give you

an idea of what these are like; Theée reports, after being pre-

pared in final form, are submitted to the Division and if approved,

are filed with the Divkion, Notice of the filing thereof is

then given to all parties*»tq the appeal, so that exceptions to

the proposed findings may be filed if desired. Such except ions,

if filed, must be supported by’briéfs which are then considered

by the Division before arrivihg-at its final decision., .In

certain cases, oral arguments on the ekceptions are called for,

Where exceptions are allowed, supplemental findings of fact

and concluSibns of law are ﬁrepared'and apﬁroved by the Division,

The fact that panel reports should contain the findings of

~fact and conclusions of law of the Division was probably not in

the minds of the legislators when R.S. 5L:2-18 was enacted,
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I think that if you will look at In Re Erie Railroad System

19 N,J., 110 (1955)9 you»Will see how far the reports have gone
along this line and how necessary that is under the present

practice, Likewise, the requirement that panel reports be dis-

tributed to the parties to the appeal in advance of the decisions

so that they might have leave to file and be heard upon exéeptions
is of recent origin, That stemmed from the decision of\the

Supremé Court in Fifth Street Pier Corpo?ation against Hoboken

22 N.J. 326 (1956),
.The effect of this latter decision has been to lengthen by

at least a month the time interval between the date a case is

heard by the panel and the date it is actually decided by the

'Divisiono As will appear hereafter, the slowing down of the

-administrative process, thus made necessary by Fifth Street Pier

Corporation against Hobdken, came at a time when the Division
was seeking ways and means of speeding up its wbrko This wés’
because of the consistent increase in the number of local
appeals filed With the Division and the increased-time which was
being taken up by the County Equdliéation appeals under

R.S. 5li:2-37, School Aid appeals under R,S. 54:1-35.l, and

‘Discrimination appeals which were permitted under the decision

of the Supreme Court in Gibralter'Corrugated Box Company Vs,

North Bergen 20 N.J. 213 (1955).

An example of this is as follows: During the fiveéyear period
ending in‘1956, there were filed with the Division‘some 6,510 |
appeals from the judgments of County Boards throughout the counties
of the ‘State., These appeals were distributed as followssq%y year:

1952 - 996 appeals |
1953 968 appeals
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195M - 1281 appeals
1955 - 1,38 appeals
1956 - 1857 appeals. |
Now, in addition to that, in 1957, we had 1693, That seems

like a little lowering than the prior years and it may be that

it is a little less, althdugh we have reason to believe that in

a number of 1957 appeéls more than one propéfty was involved.
So probably there are more properties involved than 1693.

An addltlonal factor which has tended to lengthen the tlme
required for the trial of these local appeals is-the fact that
since the decision in Gibralter Corrugated Paper Company, an
ever increasing nﬁmber of appeals haVe charged “discfimination"

by the assessor, thus creating an additional issue and requiring

~additional testimony as to the common level in each municipality.

Coupled with this has been the fact that up to 1957 the
number of Counfy Equalization appeals actualiy heard each year
has been on the increase and tended to take up more and more of
the available time of the Division. Thesevappéais come in the
spring, aré generally heard byjfhe Division beginning in May and’
£here have been times when we have gone right throughwﬁntil
{uly hearing them, In 1953, the number of County Equalization
Tables reviewed by the Divisjonrwas only one;‘but in 195l., there
were twos in 1955, there were five counties involved; in 1956,
there were seven; and in 1957, there were six, representing -
thirteen municipalities who had appealed; Now hearings have
usually started, as I say, in May and they have ffequghtly gone
into July. The subsequent preparation of the panéi reports

and their approval has taken up most of the summer during those

‘three years, However, in 1958, we were fortunate - I don't know

..






whether you would call it fbrtuﬁaté or not - but in any event only
three county tables were under appeal during the currént years 1958;

Another form of appeal which‘has required an inqreased portion
of the time of the Division is the appeal from the Table of
Equaiized Valuations pfomﬁlgaﬁed‘by the Director of Taxation
under R,S. 5li:1-35.1, This type of appeal, as you know, follows
the promulgation of the Téble of,EQualized Valuations by the
Director on October lst of each year and the appeals must be  ,
decided within a statutory time'of January 10th, Jjust as the’
equalization appeals must be decided by September 10th of each
year, We are in the process at the'present time of hearing those
appeals and we expect to have the hearings completed today so ’
that the reports will be filed by December 10th and will be réady
for final aisﬁositicn_by Januafy 10th, the statutory datga

An idea of these appeéls is revéaled by the following table:
In 195, there were only nine. In 1955, there were thirtyafive,
In 1956, there were seventy-sixc‘ In 1957, there were_seVenty and
in 1958 there were eighty., I had seventy-nine here, but I under-
stand there were eighty so I correct that figure,

Now, those appeals could be very lengthy and ihis year we
were quite fortunate in that a large number of them after our
pre-trial hearing and after weﬂhéd gone over it rather thoroughly
and entertained a motion which lasted the better part of the day
of our last meeting, have been settled, so that we hope to have
the entire task‘completed by today;

Now, an idea of what our current backlog is isvrevealed
by the following figures: As to appeals pendiﬁg9 that is; local

appeals which are the bulk of the number of our’caées, there are
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21199 pending .as of November 20th, Now there are also some local
appeals of properties belonging to railroads which we generally

classify as third-class railroad appeals, They involve property

locally assessed and we have 747 of them in our backlog., As to

railroad tax appea1$ we have 139 of these. In addition to this, we
have some miscellaneous appeals, some 19 of them, of which 17

are what you might chamcterize in‘common ordinary language as
corporation tax appeals. All of our equalization appgéls were
decidéd and are up to date and all of our school aid\appeals havé
been decided and are up to daté and we will have these decided
within the statutory period.

Now; the breakdown of our appeals peﬁding - these f&gubes
are substantially éorrect; they may not be exact - one or two
cases one way or the other - but for 1953 or prior == you under-
stand, gentlemen, that we do not have the 1958 appeais yet; we
will not ge{ them until the 15th of December =-- but for 1953 or
prior we have some ten appeals remaining on our calendaro In
1951, we have thirty-nine, of which. at least one is partly heard.
In 1955, wé have ninety=four, of which at least nine are partly
heard or are in the process ofwbeing heard, In 1956, we have
ten hundred and thirteen remaining and in 1957, we have fourteen
hundred and sixty-nine, I beg your pardon in 1956, we have nine
hundred and seventy~seven remainingland of 1957 appeals, we have
thirteen hundred and sixty-nine, Those make up the‘total that.

I have given you, |

Now those appeals that go back,. let us say, io 195l or prior,
most of those appeals, I think you will find, have been on the
calendar at least once, perhaps more times and have been adjoufned

for various reasons.
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Now, in many cases we find that,‘for instance, there may be
a case in 195l or 1955 and there may be a repetition of it in
1956 or 1957 and in a case 1ike‘that we would try to schedule
them all ét once, although perhaps there wduld be different
facts applicable to each, but it would be more convenieht to the
parties if we scheduled them together and that Is the general
practice in referring theée caseé to panel reports,

It can be seen from this that any method of coping with the
problem presented should prdvide (one) an early trial date,
(two) a fair and full hearing and (three) adequate findings of
fact and conclusions of law and a prompt and efficient method>
of appeal.,’ |

As matters now stand, operating-under the present statutes,
the members of the Division are working to the utmost of their
ability., - Their work consists of tWo phases, the hearing of
appeals and their disposition. Experience haé shown that for each
day of ordinary hearings, atlleast one and one-~half days and
sometimes two days must be spent in the analysis of testimony,
In more complicated hearings, a mgch greater time is'necessa.z‘y°
Of necessity, these reports must be prepafed by the individual
members of the Division in‘their own offices and by their own
stenographic help. These reports are then brought up for dis-
cussion, revisiCn'and adoption at.the regular meetings of
the Division, at which meetings the Division also hears motions,
conducts pre-trial hearings and hears and considers exceptions
to panel reports. |

The members Qf the Division have endeavored to keep themselves

informed as to all suggestions for expediting the work of the
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Division during the past few years. With this thought in mind
the Division revised its rules on November 1st, 1956, It has
studied suggestions made by litigants and tax attorneys as

well as by the New Jerséy State Bar Association, In going over
these various suggestions, it appears ?hat the objects generaliy
sought to be accomplished were fours: first, the hearing of
appeals by individual members of the Division who would have

the power to rule on evidence, decide motions, etc.,; secondly,
decisions by the members of the Division actually charged with
the hearing of cases, so that whether the case be assigned:to

a panel of one, two or three, the panel itself would decidg

the case; third, insurance of continuity of action on the part
of the Division by provision for holding over after expirétion
of term by individual members., Such a provision Is in effect
so far as County Boards are concerned ahd failure to include

it in the present law has caused grave inconvenience at times,
And, fourth, adequate salaries, tenure during good behavior and
pensioh provisions which would attract qualified members of the
Bar who would be willing to forego their practices to enter this
branch of the public service on a full-time basis.

During the cﬁrrent yéar, three bills were introduced séeging
to achieve one or more of these objectives, One of these was
A-97 introduced in February, 1958, to permit the Division in
certain cases to have decisions made by panels of two or more:
It is felt that the provisions of this bill, while'helpfuls would
be inadequate to meet the present situation, The other bills
introduced were A-315 providing for the establishment of a Tax
Court in the Judiciary Department and.AABZB which is before

the Senate in its amended form., It is the feeling of the Division
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that if the bill is passed, I méan Ar323, énd becomes law, it 
will go a long way towards clearing ﬁp thé current backlog and
preventing a recurrence in the future.. The principal argument
advanced in sﬁpqut‘ofvthé bill when it passed the Assembly was
that without departing from ﬁhe concept of the Divisidn as an
administrative agency, its working capacity was being increased
at no extra cost to the State, Whilé this may be an over-
‘simplificaﬁon? it‘is generally correct, It is somewhat similar
to increasing the width of a highway by adding more traffic
lanes.. Under the proposed bill seven hearing panelsvare possible
and if one panel of three is utiiized at all times, there would
still bBe four additional panels available for hearings. The
assignment of four individual Commissioners to the heéring of
routine cases cwould be able to make in our opinion a substantial
reduction in the backlog within the first six months, If this
result materializes, it would then be possible to set up a second
panel of three to continue to hear cases in conjunction with the
first three-man panel, until the number of cases to which three-
man panels were assigned was brought under control.

In determining whether cases shall be heard by panels of
three, it has been suggested that various steps be taken, One
suggestion has been that perhaps a break-off point be fixed ahd
that all assessments over a certain amount might be the criterion,
Another suggestion which has been made is {hat our rules be:
amended to provide that any litigant be permitted to demand a
hearing by a panel of three within ten days after the filing of
his appeal. The notice of appeal itself could contain the |
demand, of course, In determining whether a trial by a panel of

three should be accorded to a party, the following;?while not
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controlling or fully measuring the Division's discretion indicates
the kind of reasons which the Division would consider:

(a) The size of the assessment in'dispute.

(b) The amount of increase/or dgcréase‘in the asséssment
in dispute. v

(c) The complexity of the matter in dispute,

(d) The existence of a conflict between the determihétioﬁ
below and some other decision of the Division or of a coﬁrt of
this State, |

(e) Thé'existence of an important qﬁeétion of law which has
not been previously settled by decision of‘the‘DiVision or of
any court in this State,

You gentlemen will_noticé tha£ some of those bear a strange
resemblance to the reasons COﬁsideréd by the Supreme Court in
determining the matter of certification. We feel that they
could be very, very good aﬁd pofent reasons.,

Now, in addition, it has been suggeSted that an.additional
rule might be enacted providing that whenévef any matter for
vhich a panel of three has been requested and deniedﬁ hés
been heard and determined by é singie member, any party aggrieved
thereby may apply to the Divisibh for fehearing by filing a
petition therefor‘within ten days‘after receiving notice of the
decision, Such petiiiOn,wouId be a$signed to and heard by a
panel of three members and, if gfanted, would'be cons?ﬁered
and determined by the said panel de.novo on the basis of the
record adduced at the hearing and before the single member.

bTheses gentlemen, are of course suggestions, They aré éubject

to refinement, but basically they represent the kind of prbcedure

- 11 -
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which could be made available, |
It goes without saying thatvwhether the hearings be held

before a panel of one or a panel of three, thefe'will'be.at

the concluaion.of the hearings and opinion or decisienfeontaining‘

adequate flndlngs of fact. and conclusions of law on which a

judgment will be based and from which an appeal may be taken

direct to the Appellate D1v1sion as at present- It is felt that
in many cases involving local appeals, these op1n1ons or con-
clusions can be made from the bench»in the presence of the
parties and transcribed by the offieiai stenegrapher-SO that the
pariies will know at once how their‘appeal hasvbeen deeided and

the reasons therefor, In the case of appeals involving the

- larger properties or inﬁolving novel or'COmplicated questions,

it will genefally, of.course, be necessary that a.wfitten opinion
be filed, But even in such cases there wouid‘be a great saving
of time and. expense both to the Division and to thejlf%igantsor
It is possible, of course, that Assembly Bili No., 323 will
not turn oﬁt to be a compleie»éolutiqn te buf problem, But‘the
bill, as amended, seems to present a means whereby the business
of the Division can be mofe efficiently and promptly diSpafched
with great benefit to litiganié and'without any)significant
iaerease in the cost offoperation; Gentlemen, the'prbbleﬁ is acute
at the present time, It may be aggravated by tax legislation -
enacted during the current session of;the Legislature and it may
be aggravated by the large number of revaluation programs
which are_pending_in many of our municipaliiies;and which may

have their repercussions din county board appeals andvsubsequent

appeals to us. We feel that the enactment of this or similar
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legislation will enable us to solve our present problem and ﬁo
meet these new problems as they arise.

I might state, gentlemen; that I attended the recent con-
vention of the National Tax Asséciation inoPhiiadelphia in
company with our secretary, Mr, Carlin, and we were happy io
hear one of the speakers pay tribute to New Jersey as one of
only four states in the Union having.adequate_tax review
procedures on the State level, It is my hope and the hope of
my colleagues that we ﬁay continue to mai@tain this position.

SENATOR HILLERY: Mr. Labreque, I notice in this change in
the bill that the former membership waé made up of four
attorneys and could be a complement of three lay pepple and
now the bill provides completely for attorneys. What is the
reason for that change? ‘

MR, LABREQUE: The reason for making them all attorneys
under the present bill? 4

SENATOR HILLERY: Yes.

MR, LABREQUE; Well, I think that the general feeling was
that eventually all of the membeps of the Division should be

attorneys, . The State Bar Association has been stressing that

for a number of years and it was felt, I believe, that especially

if panels of one were to be permitted, the rulings on evidence,
the rulings on motions, all would require legal training., With
panel repqrté;‘of course, and with panel sitting, it is always
possible a layman can sit with a lawyér and a lawyer presidecs
and that solutiqn is always‘available, But if you are going to
have sitting individually, it is certainly a desirable feature

that it be all attorneys,
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SENATOR HILLERY: Well, we do have some lay people in the
State who have experi knowledge on assessments and things of
that nature., This would shut them out of the field, right?

MR. LABREQUE: Itwoudd:  If that provision is inserted, it
would definitely shut them out of the field, at least in this
phase of ii, in the field of State‘appealso Yes, sir,

SENATOR HILLERY: Thank you. |

SENATOR LANCE: Mr. Labreque, you have been a member of this
Division for how many years? _

v MR, LABREQUE: I was fifst appointed by Governor Edge in
1946,

SENATOR LANCE: I would like to ask a few questions which
go to the backlog, which I understand is accentuated by the
fact that you are burdened with work in recent years which you
" didn't have before, For example, the bill that we passed in this
housé in 195l conceming state aid for schools now makes each
- municipality very anxious that its assessﬁeﬂt ratio appear as -
high as possible and you get that type of appeal which you never
had before? ,

MR, LABREQUE: Yes, sir, we do,

SENATOR LANCE: And second, in:the old days I believe the
only thing you considered is whefher the taxpayer was assessed
fbr more than true value or he wasn't, But ﬁaday you are con-
frqnted with whether he is being aséessed higher thén the common
level, A ‘
| MR, LABREQUE: That's correct and that Situation ié aggfaﬁated
because of‘the fact thét many of these appellants - as a matter

of fact, I should say a large fraction of them have great
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.difficulty in establishing é common level and it pakes a great
.deal of testimohy to try to do it. The assessors generally
>will not testify.as to any common level and as a matter of factv
the statistics compiled by the Directér of the Division of
Taxation indicate that there are different levels even for
different types of property so it could well be that the
assessors are proper in saying that ihere is no common one in
many cases. ,

SENATOR LANCE: Wouldbit_be possible to transiate into
member days all of the appeals that were filed as a result of
the December 1, 1957 deadline? In other words, as I understand
it, the CountyABoard of Taxation cannot éccept appeals after
August 15th, The County Board of Taxation must make its
decision by November 15th and appeals from the County Board of
Taxation must be with you by December 1. I

MR, LABREQUE: December 15, |

SENATOR LANCE: == or December 15th,

MR, LABREQUE: Yes, sir, | 7

'SENATOR LANCE: Now, would it be possible to translate into
member days, assuming that you had only one member sitting on
these cases - how many member dayé‘would there be for all of
the appeals filed as a result bf any particular year?

MR, LABREQUE: Well, that is rather difficult because we
frequently run into a feast or a famine in them and it is hard
to calcalaté how many will be settled. And, of course, we are
vin somewhat the‘same position as the courts afe@ FIf we didn't
have settlements, we would be hopelessly involved as the courts

would be., You find out that a large percentage of the cases in

= 15 =






EE&?E’Q?%m§E%§iE&“5ﬁ”§ﬁé“déy of trial and were that not so,
the problem would be much more acute than it ié,' We run into
the same problem,  We assign,a certain number to a panel and:
the panel works from there @n. NOW5 genefa11y; we'as$ign a

.second date for the pénei in order to_carry}cver in caée they

 don't finish the first date. It is difficult to figure even
the‘same kind of assignment in different cdunties becausé in'some

"counties they can take a big calendar and_they will dispose;of
ﬂthem very well in one day and in other counties there will be
only a small numberband'they will have to come back thé second

~day for it. It is very harﬁ té make’a“définite commitment on
that. -

SENATOR LANCE: In recent years, what isbyour classié’ case
which took the longest time to hear? _

MR, LABREQUE: Well, I think that the ones that take the
longest time to appeal geherally --.1 can't think of one specifiﬁﬂﬁy‘
-- well, yes, I could think of’oné, I think that the Pennsylvania

"Railroad Case which invoivedvall of the-Pennsylvania Railroad
structures and real estate in Jersey City and also involved a
claim of discrimination as_to.thebvaluaﬁion in‘thesé structures
is about the longést_one and has taken up the most testimony of
any case we have had, |

SENATOR LANCE: And how long was that?'

MR, LABREQUE: Well, We=st£rted itj'Mrf Danskin tells me,
in 1956 and we finfshedbit Just last month, Now, that doesnit
mean we sét'all_the time because there are certain thingsywhich
have to be donéo For instance, when we come to equalizéiions,

we generally hold up our activities until we get rid of all
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the equalizations%and in the falllwheh school aids come up,
because of the deédline fixed by the Legislature, we set them
aside and go to work on school aid Now in this Pennsylvania
uailroad Case discrimination wao a very important feature of

‘

it. So as soon as we had finlshed —_we tried the structure

|

part first and while we were awaiting'briefs we tried the

‘j ‘.’ S . R
discrimination feature of it., And as soon as we had finished
on the discrimination feature we stopped and we went to work

\
on our report and opinion and ‘we filed our report ind opinion and

it was approveduby the Divi51on. We thougnt that they might
want to take an aépeal frem that before proceeding further, but
the application to file an appeai was denied. So we then pro-
ceeded to hear the true Vaiﬁe appeals as to all the structures.

SENATCR HILLEéY' Mr lLabreque‘ when you were offering your
recommendations, you mentioned something about pen31ons - did 1
hear that - for mémbers of tﬁis Comm1531on7

MR, LABREQUE: Yes, you‘. did, sir,

SENATOR HILLPRY On what ba51s were they to be set up
according to jrour recommendations7

MR, LAERBQUE:E I have not given any thought to it at all,
except with reference,—— The " than thatiprompted it was the
bill as originally suggested by the State Bar Association which
I think was the geneSis of Assembly 315 and in that the feeling
was that if men wére to be brought into this field, sone sort
of pension other ?han the'pension which We have now, Which is
a retirement provfsion in company with all other state and

county employees, ishould be provided so that men could leave their

practice and settle down to this and take it on as a life's work
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because it is a 1i

SENATOR HILLERY:

SENATOR LANCE

other members Of t

like to get into 1
of the hearing of

~here., Now, firSt(

MR. LABREQUE:

it is more than oﬁe'case

fe's WOFR;
Thank,you.'
Mr.

Labreque, this transcript will be read by

he Senate and élso the Assembly, so I would

he fecOrd”the‘orooedure-for the assignment
an appeal even though you have. covered it
you. as. Pr651dent a5510n a case to a pane17
That's;correct. It 1sva‘calendar usually;

"We‘make up a calendar and we assign

it to one of the panels that is ava;lable

SENATOR LANCE:

MR, LABREQUE.

!
|
must have a. mlnlmq
\

whom one must be a

SENATOR LANCE:

conceivably all se

And under the ex1sting statute that panel

m of how many members7'

That panel must have a mlnlmum of two of
n attorney.,f,tﬁ_t’“
It could have three four, five, six,,or'

Ven7:m

MR, LABREQUE:

to hear anlimportqnt matter;,

occasions,

That's right, and sometlmes we a11 sit together

We;have-done_that on a number of

SENATOR LANCEﬂ

Secohd:hthe panel of a minimum of two or

more will hold a hearlng?

MR, LABREQUE:
wherever they are

SENATOR LANCE:
its flndlngs of fa

MR, LABREQUE:

lThat's rlght

!

They would hold a hearlng
Eent throughout the State

. Third, that.panel must flleAa report as to
ct? | |

That's right. And generally before that is

done the members of the pdhel confer; if necessary they.get'aM
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transcript of the testimony and if briefs are necessary, they

|

get the briefs. And then when they have agreed on what the
report should havé, they collaborate in getting it together
and file it with Fhe secretary and it is brought up for consider-
ation. | | v |

SENATOR LANCEi Fourth, thé Supreme Coﬁrt has said that the

litigants must have an opportunity to object to the findings of

fact, is that correct?
| .

UR, LABREQUE: That is correct. That is since the Fifth
Street Pier Case, | o o
SENATOR LANCE: What is the procedure which carries that
out? |

MR, LABREQUE: ! Well, affér the Supreme Court decided that

case, we amended Qﬁr rules and what we provide is that whén the
report has finally been filed and it is ready for submission,

a copy of it is sént out td eééh_ofvthé parties to .the appeal and
we allow them ten |days WithiﬁfWhich'to filé SOwcalled exceptions
to the report, Aﬁd then each party hés the right to file a brief
in support of»or’againsi tﬁe exceptibné. That must be filed
within ten days t#o. And then, if the Division feels that the
matter is of sufficient importance or novelty, we will invite

them to argue their exceptions orally, If it is not of such

importance, we coqsider it on the briefs when they are finally

filed and we usuallly have’themv-'well,w'within a month of
the time the repornt is filed, we usually have the exceptions,
although there havb been delays.

SENATOR LANCE: Then the fifth and last ---

MR, LABREQUE: ' Incidentally, I may add to that, frequently
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tHey request amn-or

our own motion; somet

|
\
- SENATOR LANCE:
o
of the full member%hip. E
|

MR. LABREQUE:

the exceptions If

them; if they do have merit, it is necessary to prepare supple-

mental or amended

the final decision

SENATOR. LANCE:|

the standpoint of

any case to a pane
and»might have mor
of two or maybe mo
whatever it is mak
is an opportunity
fact., And, fifth,
Board, | i
MR, LABREQUE:

SENATOR LANCEJ
us as a member of
hearing.,.

You mentiohed
give us an example

"X" owning a piece

us an example of h

MR, LABREQUE: |

has been made to u

Elrhéariﬁg and then we don't always do it on

imes they ask for it and we grant it.

The fifth and last step would be-a determination

That's correct and in that case we consider

we consider they have no merit, we disallow

findings of fact and conclusions which make
So the‘five steps in your procedure from
a layman woﬁid be, first, the Pfesident assigns
lbwhich mustvhavé two members as a minimum
e. Second, there is a hearing by this panel
re members., Three, this panel of two or
es a réport of factual findings. Foﬁr, fhere
of the litigants to object to that finding of

it is followed by a decision of the full

That's correct, sir,
Senator Mathis of Ocean County is now with

the Judiciary Committee that is holding this

something about a breakoff point. Will you
of what you mean by that? In other words
of real estate files an appeal - now give
ow a breakoff point might work?
Well, that was one of the suggestions that

s from time to time, as an example, provide
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that all appeals involving property, the assessment of which

is a million dollars, should be heard by a panel of three. That

is what I have regerence to, You see, we gréigoinguinto’a new

procédure here ané some of fhe suggestions that have been made

have taken that into consideration - have thbught thét this is

a new procedure and while New Jersey stands pretty high in this

field, yet ﬁhié would guarantee that the large properties

like that would héve three men applying themselves to it instead

of one,
SENATOR LANCE: Of all the panels assigned in any recent,

typical calendar year, what peracentage of them would be two-

member panels?
MR. LABREQUE: | As far as we are concerned now under our

present practice?

SENATOR LANCE: Yes.

MR, LABREQUE:= Praciically all aré two-member panels or ﬁore.
There have been times, but not very frequent, when we have had
three-member pane%s and there‘havé been some infrequent occasions
when the entire Division sat or a quorum of the Division,

SENATOR LANCE: So at 1ea$t 95 per cent of the panels sitting

in any recent calendar year would be panels where there were two

members on each panel?

MR, LABREQUE: That's right, sir.

SENATOR LANCE: Let's sum up briefly how Assembly Bill 323
differs from the éxiStiﬁg statute, Will you run down the four
or five points of difference between Assembly Bill 323 in its

present amended form and in the form vhich it passed the House?

How does that differ from the existing statute?

- 21 -
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l 'the D1V1sion befor

~eliminates the 'nec

over in the event

in time to continue

’fbyeé membef,to who

‘longer be necessar

defined in pfeviou

MR LABREQUE-
seven members, but
ofvlaw,'.lt delete

the D1vis1on. ‘It
tneyrhave been flA

by the attorney.
| Theléecbnd'cha
attention to is th

namely, five years

preseﬁtly in effec
1n State Boards an

Tne next 31gn1
Methodbof‘procedur

make new rules, of

the.membérs,vif as
ation of the Divis
say: the most impo

And, lastly, 5

And then the P

supervision of‘the

~ SENATOR LANCE:

Well Assembly Bill 323 st111 prov1des for
1t prov1des that they a11 shall be attorneys
s the pPOVlSlOﬂ permlttlng laymen to 51t on’

was posslble for three laymen to be members of 

e and'werhave had laymen on. the D1V1sion and
e men~and«they3have earned our respeet.»titf .

eséityiof:at;ieaSt'ten,yeafs’ standing

nge that I would llke to call the Commltteefs
e fact that whlle ‘the terms are the same,
. there 1s a. prOV1so which permits holding
that ‘a member 18 not 1mmed1ate1y reapp01nted
e w1th his work That is a previs;on whzch.ls;'
t 1n~County Boards; but it is;net ih effect
d it is pPOV1ded for in the bill o
flcant change 1s in ;u 2-1& pPOVlding for the .
e and that you will note prov1des that we may
course,‘but 1t provides that a determxnation
m an appeal has been a581gned or a maJority of
31gned_to three will constitute the determlnm'
ien}rtThat is the‘heart and,souls youtmlght o
rtant:pert of‘:th_e:{bi'llo
u:2€18315*e1fhihated~becauseit,willno5
Ve ‘The repbft‘sy%tem»will.no 1énge;1be‘needed,
resideht is givenfgeneral edministrativeu B
Dlvision which has not been quite clearly‘

s 1eglslat10n._

Comlng back to your thlrd point under )

v"t -,22;? L
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Assembly 323, assu

of thevDivision wo

so far as the numb
MR, LABREQUE:

appeals before us.

we have presently

would be set up at

hearing the larger

- every appeal is
terms.of amount in
of questions of la

men available for

they do not consum;

fact ﬁhey consume

ning‘that a case was up for hearing, the President
11d have what alternatives open to him in

er of persons on ihe nanel are concerned?

Of course, it would depend on the kind of

It would be my thought on the basis of what
pending before us, that a panel of three

once and that panel of three would go to work
and more important - and I say "more importént"
important - but 1 mean more important in

volved, let us say, or more important in terms

y invqlved. And there would still be four
the hearing of the routine cases, which while
e the iargest amoun£ of time - as a matter of

less time probably - but they are most in

numbers and they make a very big figure when you look at the

statistics,. althou
men assigned to va
I believe, quite a
other set of appea
slowly or they nee
second three-man p
we would stili hav
if this plan would
additional panel.

working today and

their own decision

Street Pier Case w

get prompt decision

gh they are not always that way. And four

rious calendars by the President could make,
dent in them in six months., Then, if the
ls before the three-man panels are going

d help, we would then be able to set up a
anel to'work on them and you will see that
e three panels even at the end of the vear
work out - two three-man panels plus an
Vow that would be as many panels are aé
it will in addition permit the panels to make

s so that the delay occasioned by the Fifth

911 be ellmlnated and people will be able to
1

\-)o

Does that answer your question?
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SENATOR LANCE: ~ Well, in looking at the bill, what is
the earliest section in the bill which ---

MR. LABREQUE: | The earliest what?

SENATOR LANCE: What is the earliest section in the bill which
|

vests in the President the power to assign a matter to a three-

man panel or a one-man panel?

MR, LABREQUE: !Well, that is Section 6 of the bill., (Reading)
"He shall have powér to assign each appeal for hearing and

determination to a member or, in such cases as he may deem

proper, to a panel of 3 members of the division," and that
became 5 in the amended bill, I beg your pardon, It was excised

here; I missed it,

SENATOR LANCE:j I have no more questions of Mr., Labreque.
I want to thank yJu for yéﬁr testimony based on your years of
service in this particular Division,

MR. LABREQUE:  Thank you for your patience and if there is

anything else, our| men are here, and I especially asked Judge

Kopp to be here, ﬁe has been'a former member of the Judiciary
|

and he may have some words to add to what I have said,

i

SENATOR LANCE:‘ Is either the present secretary or the
former secretary h%re? |

MR, LABREQUE: ; The former secretary is Mr, Danskin, The
present secretary Es Mr. Carlin and Judge Kopp is former District
Court Judge of Berben County and he has been a member of our
Division now for qhite some time,

SENATOR LANCE: Mr, Danskin, are you prepared to testify?

MR, DANSKIN: Yes, sir,

SENATOR LANCE:; Mr, Labreque, could we ask you one question
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|
before you leave, ;Originally the bill as introduced in the
Hoﬁse providéd for?full-time service by these members,

MR, LABREQUE: 1Yes, sir,

SENATOR LANCE:§ What are the pros and cons of full time versus
part time? ! _

MR, LABREQUE: | Well, there is no question but that there are
argumeﬁts on both;ﬁides of the fence, From a practical stand=-
point, the time that is now being taken up by the work of the
Division on an av%rage by our members indicates that they are
wérkihg‘pretty'muﬁh to the upmost of their ability. There is
an argument in favor of fuil_time that there are no complicating
factors and that aiman can just live this business., On the
part of the membeﬂs of our Division now - they are all attorneys -
they all have somé practice, some more extensive than others -
and they have'foqu that their practice is very much affected
and reduced by th% work that they are doing and generally it .
would completely ﬂestroy theif practice if it were made full
time without some;consequential advantage such as the State
Bar bill with a gmgry and some sort of pension‘rights which
in fairness to th%ir_families would Jjustify them in giving up
their practice and taking this work on as a career; so to speak,

' SENATOR HILLE&Y: lr. Labreque, when you say that the present
setup is'injuriouA‘on”a part-time basis to the practice of these
lawyers, how do ydu mean that? |

|
MR. LABREQUE: I didn't hear it, Senator,

‘ A i
SENATOR HILLERY: I believe I heard you say that a part-
time basis as is ﬁresently set up is injurious to a p?%ctice.

MR. LABREQUE: Definitely, sir.
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SENATOR HILLERY: In what sense?
MR, LABREQUE: In the sense that you are not in your offlce

you are not able to schedule the trial of cases and it is qulte

a task to try to keep a practlce going now the way appealo have

been running\the last three years, If you don?i‘have partners
and very good ones, it is pretty tough. ‘

SENATOR HILLERE(o How many days a week does the average
member sit now in these cases?

‘MR, LABREQUE: | We set up anQa1 of two days a week sitting
and we feel that it takes a day and a hqlf of paper work and
sometimes tw§ days for each déy;ygu sit.

SENATOR LANCE: Having been a judge fbr five years, I appreciate
that you may sit on the bench for twenty minutes in:hearing a |
workmen“s cémpensatiéh Case'comiﬁg to yoﬁvand then the two lawyers
will thfow'on your bench a brief of twenty pages, each, and a
transcript df the hearing which may run 500 pages with doctors
testifying. The bench time might be twenty‘minutes, but the
actual time consumed in ultimately making a determination might
have a ratio of ten to one or twenty to one or what have you.

Itts rather diffichlt to tfanslate.into manhours the relations
ship between bench time and ultimaté over all timé consumed,

MR, LA@REQUE; Well, our problem on a smaller scale is
somewhét.similar.

I

SENATOR HILLERY: It is almost similar to a legislator, isn't

it? v ' »
| MRo LABREQUE ¢ iYes; I agree, As a matter of fact I have

found out since I pave been down here that a'legislator?s %ork
is never done,

SENATOR LANCE: Well, thank you again, Mr, Labreqﬁéo
| - 26 -




3.



" Mr, Danskin, w

and tell us how ma

|
111 you start out by identifying yourself
|

hy»yeafs of experience you have had with the

Division of Tax Appeals or ‘its predecessor body in one capacity

or another,
MR, BENJAMIN S

taxation in the BQ

member of the Mohm

I served as a memb
when I became secr
retired from that

SENATOR LANCE:
of the State Divis

MR, DANSKIN:

SENATOR LANCE:

MR, DANSKIN:
now, Senator?
SENATOR LANCE:

MR, DANSKIN:

DANSKIN: I began in the local field of

rough of Spring Lake before I became a
outh Board of Taxation, which was in 1942,
er and president of that Board until 1951
etary of the Division of Tax Appeals. 1
position on the first of October.

So how many years were you the secretary
ion or its predecessor?
Seven years{w'_ |
Go right ahead,

‘ P ‘
Do you want me to go into what I have to say

Yes,

I haven't any prepared statement, I listened

with a great deal
President Labreque
very thoroughly.
which myself as ad
noticed that there

Number one, an

of intefest to the presentation made by

and I think that he has covered the matter

However, there are certain little things

ministrator of the Division over the years
were some - you might say omissions.

appeal filed in 1958 doesn't have to be filed

until the 15th of |
|
are currenf,
the appeals mentio

the appeals which

They can't possibly be heard before 1959,

Now in
ned by President Labreque, he did not include

might come to the Division from any action of

T =

December 1958, So that in 1959,'the 1958 appeals






h)

the County Board, The County Board, as you know, prepares
an abstract of rateablesvwhich contains many things so far as
the distribution of the cost of county government is concerned
and othér‘matters, That matter is also appealable to the Division
of Tax Appeals. Theh,‘too, there is the matter of exemptions
for hospitals, schools, churches and veterans' exemptions. Take,
for instance, here in the City of Trenton the“Rider College
appeal took days and days of testimony - reams of testimony
before the matter could be decided and it subsequently reached
the Supreme Court,

The Division, of course, of necessity and properly is sub-
ordinate to the courts and where a case is pending in court
for final decision in any matter, the Division of Tax Appeals
must of necessity put pff hearing that appeal until the final
decision comes down,

In the matter of the panel reports, up until the Fifth

Street Pier Case, the panel reports were not submitted to the

interested parties until after their adoption. That put a

tremendous burden on the Commissioners as to the form and

content of the panel report and also increased the admiﬁistrative

work of the Division in having to send out the panel reports

to the interested parties., That is in addition to the delay in

the final .decision which was mentioned by President Labreque.
qu, most of the talk of remodéling the Division, both

pro and con, comes from, well, you might say the taxpayers who

have a gréat deal at stake, But, as I said before, other things

must be considered. The little taxpayer, as was mentioned by

President Labreque, is just as much interested in the;amount;of
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taxes that he pays as is‘the Pennsylvania Railroad Company and
in some oaseé, you might say, that they are entitled to relief
more than the very large taxpayer. That is‘the type of appeal
which over the years, both at the County Board level and at the
Division level, has been given a great deal of consideration
by the Division and the County Boards and Jjustly so.

You know today that people are more tax conscious than'they
have ever been, The difference of $500 in your assessmeﬁt when
the tax rate was $3.50 is a long ways from $500 when your tax
rate is $22‘a thousand. So that the little fellow takes up more
time now than he used to and he is given évefy opportunity to
present his case, with ofvwithout thebadVice of counsel or expert
witnesses. |

Now we have had appeals, lengthy appeals; from the abstract
of ra}eables as to the inclusion of personal property in the
matter of the distribution of county taxes without equalization
and such related subjects. So as I told the presiding Senator in
é conversat ion with him, a lot of the prosand cons of this problem
comes from the uhinitiated who have no more idea wﬁat the Division
of Tax Appeals does than the man who doesn't even pay any taxes,
I Jjust made those few notes, Now, Mr, Labfeque mentioned the
Pennsylvania Railroad Case which was a very lengthy case,
'idﬁﬁgééhms perhaps at a first glance that that case might'have
been concluded sooner, But we also have to subordinate our time
to the County Boards at certain times of the year. Fériinstancey
the majority of our appeals of necessity come from Essex, Hudson
and Bergen, which are the bigger counties and the County Boards

~have to hear their appeals between the 15th of August and the
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viSiﬁ ovaovémber aﬁd you can readily see that they use the

same attorneys, the same municipal'attorneys, the same attorneys
for the 1itigants in a gfeat many cases, and the same expert
witnesses, And,'therefore, we can't fix appeals during the time
~which the County Boards sit becausé'of the statutory date which
they have for completion, » |

Now, I think that this bill is a step forward, There is no
question about it. I feel that something has to be done to
keep the appeals more current., The presiding Senator dsu dgn
probably venyvfamiliar with this whole thing.- We had some
conversations about‘the'matter and he showed a great deal of
knowledge of the actions of the Division of Tax Appeals, but I
Jjust wanted to add these'féw remarks to what the President has
said,

There wasn't quite enough stress, I don't think, put on the
Gibralter Case;‘which for the first time in”this State, the
Division appeals had the right to reduce the assessment below
true value if discrimination can be shown., Now, you gentlemen all
know that there aren't any pfoperties == well, I say ihat‘just in
passing ==~ but thererare very few properties in New Jersey assessed
’ét 100 per cent. DNow, if they caﬁlt prove discrimination, they
‘can't get relief and the matter‘ofrproving discrimination is
sométﬁing elsevagain, Sc there again is the time~consuming
practice which the Division is now faced with which théy weren'tl
faced with before, '

I think that probably concludes my statement, gentlemen, on
the subject, I would be very happy to answer, if I can, any

questions which you might have to ask,
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SENATOR HILLERY: Mr. Danskin, are you an attorney?

MR, DANSKIN: WNo, sir, |

SBNATOR HILLERY: Well, what training‘did‘yoﬁ héve for your
‘work on the board? Aré'you a realtor?

MR, DANSKIN:-‘Just simply a étudy of‘the’1aw and the
discussion of thevopinions, both with the members of the Division
and the Judiciary.
| SENATCR,HILLERY: You are in agreement With the statement
in the law"thét in the future it should be turned over.complétely
tobattorneys-at—law, the membership? _ _

MR, DANSKIN: If they sit singly, definitely. If they sit
singly, they definitely should be attorneys. | |

SENATOR'LANCE; Would it be impractical to move back the
August 15th deadline for a County Board of Tax Appeal filihgs
to some date earlier in the year, such as April or May?

MR, DANSKIN: s.enator_,_that I don't think is practical.

That was changed you know many years~égo. The reaéon for that
is the fact too, you understand, that the County Boards are also
’partAtime; Well, let's take the procedure, if you would like me
to, right from the stért. The local éssessor begins: his work
of preparing the tax rolls for the subsequent year on the first
of October. He must file his tax list in duplicate with the
County Board on or befbre the 10th of January and from the 10th
of January until the first of Aprii, the County Board in éffect
are assessors., It is their.job to check the assessment rolls
forimatematical errors or any other kind of errors and algo
determine wle ther or not the assessments are proper Whichvhave

been filed by the assessor, Then they have to, after they
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: receivehthe municipal budget and after they receive the county
budget, strike a rate and they prepare their abstract of rate-
ables, The tax bills usually go out around the first of May

and that is about the earliest date that the tax bills can get
out, So to push the initiai”filing date for the County Boards

up ahead of August 15th; I can't see véry well how it can be

done to give the taxpayer an oéportqnity to get his bill and
determine whether or not the assessment on his property is proper.

SENATOR LANCE: So it is your conclusion, cohsidering all
the details and all the people that are in this picture, the
earliest an owner could possibly have a hearing would be the year
following? |

MR, DANSKIN; -=- from the Division of Tax Appeals; There
iIs no questioﬁ about that because December lﬁth, even if there
were no backlog, the administrative process in geﬁting a tax
appeal in and»dockéting it and acknowfedging it and going %hrough
‘the work of preparing calendaré,'it wouldn't be possible in the
same fiscal year to hear the appeal which was filed on December
15th, |

SENATOR HILLERY: You are in agreement with the statement in .
the law that it should be full-time work?

MR, DANSKIN: Yes, to a degree. I agree with the President,
Fnowing this work as L'do, Senator, and the ihportance of it,
nothing but the best should‘be‘attracted to this job. Someone,

‘as Mr. Labreque has said, would make it a life job. It is quite
a study. You know that very few iawyers handle tax appeals. It
is you might say almost a Separate‘field. Now you have separate

fields for workmen's compensation, negligence and chancery matters,
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men who specialize in that and that is the way it is in taxation.
The ramifications of it,as I enlarged on the President's report,
of the‘type of appeals which we hear would show you thét a man
must have ﬁhe background and the training and the study and the
ability to make the research:which is necessary to make these
‘decisions. So I think if it is going to be a full-time job,

the pay and the other fringe benefits should be sufficient to
attract the proper men to the job so that they could devote
iheir‘time to it rather than expect some day that they will be
out in the cold without either a practice or a job and you will
find,if you get into this tax field, that it is rather complicateds

SENATOR HILLERY: Senator lLance informs me that the bill
does ﬁot make it a full-time job. |

MR. DANSKIN:  This does not make it a full-time job. 1In the
bill as originally drawn"it was a full-time job., It was amended to

remove that section, -

SENATOR HILLERY: Wﬁat iélyour recommendation then, that it
should be full time?

MR, DANSKIN: I don“t have any recommendation on that today,
Senator. The reason fof it is this: There has been legisiation
introduced over the past numﬁer of‘yaars, corrective measures,
to try to cope with this situation, and were I the arbiter in
this matter, I would say pass 323 rather than to complicate the
matter further by interjecting whether or not it should be full
time or what the salary should be and so forth and so on,

SENATOR HILLERY: Thank you. v

SENATOR LANCE: If it were made full time, you would advoéate
certain changes? |

MR, DANSKIN: Oh, definitely,
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SENATOR LANCE: Of what nature?

MR,'DANSKiN: I would reduce the number of the Coﬁmissioners
and increase ihe salary very substantially. |

SENATOR LANCE: How man& Commissioners and what salary?

MR, DANSKIN: I would suggest five Commissioners - a minimum
of $18,000 for the Commissioners and %19;000 for the President°

SENATOR LANCE: And would you go further and copy the court
system in any way?

MR, DANSKIN: fThére is aAdivisio@ of opinion on that,

As you know the United“States Tax Court is not in the Judiciary;
it is-in the Administrative Branch of the government. And over
the years there have been many arguments pro and con on that,
whether to establish a tax court in New Jersey in ﬁhe Executive
Branch of the government or whether to make it a part of the
Judiciary. There haé been a suggestion made that a Tax Division
be established in the Superior Court, such as the Matrimonial
Division, the Law Division, the Appellate Division, etc., In

- that event, of coufse, the Jjudges would be interchangeable,

if necessary, to take care of any calendar load,

But, as I said before;_there have been so many suggestions
made and so many bills introduced and so much talk about this
that I think, to put it very’frankly ﬁo you gentlemen, it is
time that the talk stopped and something was done and 'I think this
is the bill which would best sébve as the first étep anyway.
That is the way I feel about it,

SENATOR MATHIS: Might I ask why it has been decided th%t
a layman couldn't fill this position?

MR, DANSKIN: I don't agree with that, Seziator9 that laymen
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'v'can't fill the p051tion. I 81mply say thls - from my exper1ence'
if a Commissioner is 901ng to 51t 1n a Judlcial matter 31ngly,v o
- I think that the tralnlng and the background of an attorney who‘
has practlced in the courts of this State e he would be better
equlpped to de01de on the rules of evidence and the motlons .
and the matters Wthh come before hlmo_'_ . Co  1_

SENATOR HILLERY. Mr. Danskln with your years of experlencel
on thls Board don't you thlnk that you would be capable as :
a indiV1dual to hear some cases and make deolsions7 o __f

MR, DANSKIN:r_Well I thlnk that is rather an embarrasaing
‘,Quest1on.viv irv '."”‘. RS ‘ : . | _ ;,l lr |

" SENATOR HILLERY: Idomtthlnklt is at all, This 1San "
1mportant questlon." :h, - v ‘a | ,;:_ | |

MR, DANSKIN' As you know l:have eat in that;capaeltyﬁfor“
pretty nearly tenvyearS‘as a»member“of the Countnyoardvehearingﬁ
exactly the same type of appeals that the State Board now hears
lexcept the assessments leV1ed by the Director, the state assess-
‘ments themselves. As a matter of fact, I could say this that
I have heard more appeals than any present member of the D1v1810n
of Tax Appeals. But of course I mlght say, sir, that thle has
been almost a life study W1th me

| SENATOR HILLERY. Well I thznk 1t has been a life stuiy

v&ﬂ1alot of laymen, such as realtors° _ | |

MR. DANSKIN: There is no questlon about 1t You'haVe some
'county tax board comm1531oners and county tax board secretarles
‘that are perfectly capable » ‘

SENATOR HILLERY“ This blll would shut them out of the'
fleld . ' » ’
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.MR DANSKIN. No question of that | v

SENATCR HILLERY°- And you are in. agreement w1th that?

‘MR, DANSKIN: Yes, sir.\” - | L
. 'SENATOR LANCE°' Do you favor the holdover prov151on7
 MR. DANSKIN: Oh, definztely. Lo el

SENATOR LANCE’ And you favor the vestlng w1th the Pre31dent of
the discretion to have a 51ngle member make a dec151on7 ‘ |

'MR. DANSKIN: Yes, that is, if they pass 323. That would be
bhe prbvision; i fw : | |

1SENATOR LANCE° There ere bhree Ways at-least changes could
be made in the comp031t10n. One would be the Tax Court orzginally
"advocated by the State Bar A53001ation, in which event the members
would be Superlor.Court:Judges-with tenure upon‘a second appoint-
'ment, a non—contrlbutory pension, etc, 'The second WOuld be
" the retention of the body as an administratlve body on a partm‘
time basis ' The thzrd would be. the retenticn of the body as an
'admlnistratlve body on a partmtlme ba51s or on a full tlme basisgl
with an 1ncreased salaryeb Now the‘question I orlginally meant
to ask was: If this body were bo be retained as an administrative
body with full-time service, wdald you gelfurther'and copy from
bhe Courts,agy”of’theirvaOVisfbns as te additional emolumente
or benefits?'.’ | )

MR. DANSKIN: Yes. I think that the additional emoluments
and benefits should be prov1ded because as Justlce Brennan set
forth in the Passa1e decision, there are times when we, the
~Divi$ion'0f~Tax Appea1§'~ I‘say "Weﬁ- I am ne longer Mwe - but
the DiV131on of Tax Appeals has three functions at present -»Oﬁe

is anvadminlstrat1ve agency° The other 1s a quasi Judic1a1 body
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and the other, as set forth'by Justice Brennan, sitting in
school aid appeals or county equalization appeals, they then‘
become a quasi-legislative body to follow dﬁt and carry out the
wishes of the Legislature in thé apportionment of these funds.

SENATOR LANCE: If the other members of the Committee have
no further questions; we want to thank you, Mr, Danskin, for
testifying. |

MR;/DANSKIN: Thank you véry much for the-OpportuniFy,
gentlemen, L » .

SENATOR LANCE: Are there other members of the State Board,
Mr. Labreque, who desire to testify? | |

MR, LABREQUE: They feel thatvthe matter has been adequately
covered unless something is brought up which needs further
clarification, _ . |

SENATOR LANCE: I will now call on Mr. Taub representing
the State Bar Association. Do you want to take the stand where
we have the microphone attached?

MR. BENJAMIN M, TAUB: Senator Lance and Senators Hillery
and Mathis: I received the letter Saturday morning which
asked me as Chairman of the State Bar Association to present a
brief for the benefit‘of the Judiciary Committee., But getting
it Saturday morning and presenting a brief today, it was almost
an impossibility,

However, I would like to bring the Commitﬁee up to date on
what transp@red in so far as we lawyers are concerned as‘a
State Bar Association and as a Committee on State Taxation
appointed by the President of the State Bar. Now the Committee

on State Taxation very definitely took a stand on both 315
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and 323, We ére still the proponent; and the sponsors and in
favor of 315. At a meeting of the Committee, by a divided
vote, the Committee voted to‘oppose 323 and I as Chairman
of the Committee in my report to the State Bar Association,
which I read 1ést Saturday at the mid-winter meeting of the
State Bar,suggested that inasmuch as there was a divided opinion
among the IawyérS‘as to the value of 323 if it were passed and
what effect it would have upon the administration of justice
involving tax-litigated matters, I left it to the State Bar
Association - that is, when I say "I", I am talking for the
Committee now on State Taxation - to decide as to whether.or
not we should oppose 323 as we did oppose 38l in 1956 and 97,
which was reintroduced by Assemblyman Deamer in 1958 and which
in the opinion of the Committee is practically 323 with the
exception that it has a holdover provision for the members of
the Board, with which we fully agree,

Now we feel as a Committee that if we cantt get 315-and I
doubt or I can't see anything on the horizon fhat we can get
it, although tﬁat wou ld be the solution to the whole problem =
for the present time we see no objection to 323 being passed.
As a matter of fact there are two provisions in 323 that we
feel,as a Stéte Bar Association and as a Committee and as lawyers,
would help tax matteré conéiderably and would also heip‘the
"complex" of the Board considerably and one is a holdover
provision. In other words, when a man's term expires, if'ényh
thing goes wrong, why he is off the Board., The President of the
Board had that very problem happen to him on two occagions, I

think, and then was reappointed., We think that ought to be taken

\
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out of thé present law and the holdover provision should be .:unin
retained, We further feel that if the decisions are going to

be made by the Board, they should be made by one man in the form of
a judgment, sitting after hearing the case. If you could pos-
sibly amend it right now, I would like to see that panel provision
taken out and leave it to a one-man decision throughout; instead

of having it one or two or three at thé discretion of the
President of the Boérd; I would much prefer to see it decided

by one man: |

We happen to be very fortunate in having a President of the
Tax Division of Appeals who is sincere and interested in his
work. But what if we get a President, say, four years from now
who likes a little golf more than hé does tax matters or he likes
the practiée of law a little more thah he does his own tax matters
as a member of the Commission? We are going to run into trouble
again,

I want to call your attentipn to this one fact., The President
of the Board, himself, stated that there were 3,L0L cases pending
right now aé of November 20th, I think my addition and my
arithmﬁtiéafe correct, Add to that approximately 1500 cases
that might come in as of December lst for 1958, which would bring
it pretty close to 5,000 cases again° And that is a Herculean
task to tr& to get around. You have to do some tall sitting, in
the vernacular, to tfy to dispose of a calendar that is behind to‘
the extent of 5,000 cases, If one man is going to sit, I think
that you might be able to dispose on the local level, the local
property appeals where no reports are necessary or no written

judgments‘are necessary, of probably 70 per cent of those cases., .
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They could be decided right off the bench by the commissioner
sitting, which would reduce the number of appeals.

But I say, gentlemen, and now I am talking not for the
Committee, but for Ben Taub as a lawyer practicing in this state,
that eventually we have to come to a court - that we will never
be able to meet the tax situation in this state as an administrative
body. We have tried it on several occasions. I had the
privilege of amending that bill myself on two differeni occasions
when I was a member of the Attorney General's Office. I had
the privilege of trying many cases before tﬁe Tax Division,

On one case alone, it took six months to try continuously by a
panel, Judge Waesche who is now in the Superidr Court was then
President of the Division and he sat as the presiding member of
the panel that tried that case., In.ampther case I was interested
in in Atlantic'City, I think it took about six weeks with the
whole board sitting, seven members - the Atlantic City Transportation
Company Case - and then, of course, some would drop out and
others would come back and it took almost two years before that
case was determined by the Board, So that administratively I
think that the method of disposing of appeals in this state has
been a failure in my opinion, my own personal opinion,

However, coming back to what I said, the State Bar Association
has gone on record unanimously to favor the passage of 323 if
we can't get 315, but we are still in favor of 315, And that
about éums it up. I don't want to go over statistics again
that the President has aiready given you, But if you want a brief
on this thing, I would be very happy to submit it., When is your

next session, December 8th?
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SENATOR LANCE: That's correct. _

MR, TAUB: "I think I could get it in before then and give you
what our Committee in our study over: the past three years has
determined and foundkand concluded, and 1 might say that we have
some good tax lawyers on our Committee, men of the type of Ed
O'Mara, Aaron Laséer and Leo Rosenblum of:Jerseylcity, a11 good
léwyers, and Gus Nasmith representing the D,L., & W. by the way, and
we have given this a Iot_ofvthoughtrand a lot of study.

SENATOR HILLERY: What qualifies an attorney to sit on this
" Board? 1 mean, Where-would he get his prior exberience as a
tax ekpert? |

" MR. TAﬁBﬁ You mean now as opposed to a lay member? Is that
what you mean? _ _ _ ‘

SENATOR HiLLERYz Well, no, not necessarily, but just as an
attdrnéy; What qualifies him to be selected to an.appointment
to sit on this Board?

" MR. TAUB: The mére fact that he Is a Iawyef.first of all
qualifies him because he has gonefthrough a certain training and
certain experiences that he has had. And most of the work before
the Board‘in my opinion - and I hévé had eleven years: of
experience con;inuously, without doing anything else - is of a
judicial nature, They do very little administrative work, I
would say 97 per cent of their work is judicial and about 3
per‘cent probably when they meet once every month, is it, on a
Tuesday, or twice, would be administrative, Secondly, there
isn't a lawyer in this state - and I donft believe in this saying
tha£ you must be a specialist; you can bécome a specialist =-- -

there isn't a lawyer in this $£ate who wculd_become a Jjudge after
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three‘of four years who wouldn't be a specialist in the field of
taxation'if he sat on these caées,

Now, Senator Hiilery, the point that bothers me, and I
will givebyou an example if‘you want me to, in answer to your
question why a layman can't sit, and I am not opposed to laymen
either === _A _ 7 | | |

SENATOR HlLLERYz 1 am not opposed either, sir.

MR, TAUB: A lot of these people are pretty good friends
of mine and I don“tvwant you to think.I am oppbsed to them,
and you aré one of them. I have tried cases where wevhad a
layman on the Board. We had two lawyers and a 1a&manff This
layman is no longer a member of the Board. He was from Union
County. It resolved itself to this point where the .two lawyefs
took opposite stands on a motion, so it was left to the layman
Ito decide that motion. Now, he knew nothiﬁg about our rules _
of evidence, with all due respect to the layman., It takes.a
lawyer years of notvonly practicé, but of study, and we have a
code to go by. We have a code of evidence which guides the
lawyer, And when you intrqduce expert testimony and where
‘hundreds of thousands of dollars are involved, you have to be
very careful what you let into the record and what you keep
out of the record so as to see that the case is properly
presented at least to the Appefiate Court before it gets there,

SENATOR HILLERY: Well, what I am driving at is with a
panel, a new man on a point of»this kind could learn by sitting
in with a.panel and hearing cases, But under this law, a man,
newly éppointed, would then be one man deciding casés, isn't
that right?

MR, TAUB: That's correct, Senator.
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SENATOR LANCE: I want to be clear as to what official
attitude the State Bar Association took at its meeting which
it held last week, I believe, , ,

MR, TAUB: That's right, Satq:day,  There were two motions
that were adoptéd, AOne motion was that we favor the passage of
3230 There was énother motion made that we still continue our
efforts and that we are still in favor of and we hope and trust
that some day in the near future that we will have a tax court
which will be integrated with our judiciél system in the State
- of New Jersey and I feel that they shoﬁld be Sﬁperior Court
Judges‘w;th the same'emolument and the same pension‘rights’and
the same term of appointment° 7

SENATOR LANCE: Both of those resdlﬁtions passed?

MR, TAUB: =- were adopted, yes. I just want to make one
thing clear to Sehétor Hillery., I am not opposed to a layman,

SENATOR MATHIS: I don't imagine any practicing lawyer is,‘
do you? I donft suppose ény practicing lawyer is oppésed toilaymen?

MR. TAUB: No, I don't think so.

SENATOR LANCE: Mr. Taub, I want you to know that Senator
Hillery in addition to being a manufacturer and a Iégislator is
also a painter of some note and that from November 17th on he has
an exhibition in the Madison Public Library where he has an
exhibit of twenty water colors and twenty canvases,

MR, TAUB: I have heard about the talents of Senator Hillery,

SENATOR LANCE: Are there any others who desire to testify?
(No response) | » .

I have a statement which was mailed to me by the State Chamber
of Commerce, asking that it be filed and incorporated in full as
part of the record., It is a fiyefpage statement., Suppose We

read that so everyone knows what 1t is.
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‘Statement
o - of the -
'xNew Jersey State Chamber of Commerce
’ filed with the
~Judiciary Commlttee
o " of the
New Jersey State Senate

. Hearlng on Assembly Blll 323 :
B Monday, November 2h 1958 A

Operation of the D1v1s1on of Tax Appeals

Under the present 1aw the D1v1s10n of Tax Appeals is organlsed as’ a.Div1-
sion in the Department of the Treasury. It con31sts of seven members at 1east
four of whom must be attorneys-at-law "of at least ten years' standlng"» tAt:-
present all the members are'attorneys. | |

Thelpresentvlam also provides-that members mnst be<"cnosen becamse of:"
their spec1al quallflcatlons, knowledge and experlence in matters concernlng
,the valuatlon and taxatlon of property, partlcularly of real property"

- The salary of the pres1dent is $11 SOO and that of the other members
s $1o 500 | |

It 1s also provided the members must deyote such “time as is requlred for
the efflclent performance of the dutles of the offlce. At present\the.members. :
are serv1ng on a part-tlme basis. - | 3

The Division mayvreferbto tmo or<more“of its:members the taking othesti-
mony and the making of a,report on the testlmony and the matter- 1nvolved but

the determlnatlon must be made by the full membershlp of the D1v151on._'

| Conseqnences of the Mode of Operatlon . .
As of October 1, 1958 “the 31tuat10n w1th respect to cases pendlng beforein ‘

the D1v1s1on of Tax Appeals was as follows-rfT SR






j‘*2 SOS local appeals pendlng over the years from 1953 to 1957
a 1nclu51ve,_ ;-. , v .

r‘76h rallroad property appeals not 1n rallroad use over the years L
}195h to. 1957 1nclu31ve,;ﬁ¢f ; L T

- 139 rallroad tax appeals from State assessments over the years f""””
- from 1952 to 1958 inclusive; . L .

a2h corporatlon tax appeals;
2 mlscellaneous apoeals, o ‘ R \
ba,79 appeals pendlng from the Dlrector's Table of School Ald and

_5 appeals from County Equallzatlon Tables.;

ThlS baoklog has been varlously ascrlbed to the partmtlme seerce of the’l:g'

members and to the procedure whlch whlle permlttlng two or more members to hear‘,.f

the cases, requlres determlnatlon of the cases by the full lelSlon, w1th the A

Judgment belng 31gned by at least four members."av 7
In addltlon to the accumulatlon of a backlog of appeals, there 1s anotherl
complalnt Wlth the method of handllng tax appeals. ‘This crltlclsm was well put

in a Newark News edltorlal on January 30 of thls year-

The ‘work of the d1v1310n of tax appeals is almost explus1vely
o Judlcial ‘but it is not under JudlClal supervision., -An agency -
~ ruling on pleas for tax reductions is itself part of a department
" primarily concerned with collecting as much revenue as possible,
The division'!s status thus presents an incongruity; a sort of
confllct of interest 1n reverse." '

Proposed Remedies :

Assembly Bill No. 323
Assembly Bill No. 323, as orlglnally 1ntroduced in the Assembly on March 10
1958 stlpulated that the D1v151on of Tax Appeals should con51st of s1x attornevs--

at-law and speolflcally requlred that the members devote "full tlme to the per— o






‘formance of thelr dutles" at salarles of %16 SOO for -the pres1dent and $16 OOO.e
for- the other members.. It ellmlnated the requlrements that the attorneys be |
attorneys "of at 1east 10 years’ standlng" and that the members be . "chosen be-.
‘cause of thelr spec1al quallflcatlons, knowledge and experlence in matters c0n-‘
cerning the-valuatlon and taxatlon of property, partlcularly of real property"
Assembly Blll No. 323 also prov1ded for a331gnment of appeals to one, or to three
members, for both hearlng and dctermlnatlon.' | R bi
However, before passage of this blll by the Assembly on Aprll 2h 1t was

amended° ‘ :

to»restore'the number of members to seven;

to remove the specific reference to "full tlme" serv1ce,_and

to restore the salarles to the present levels._

Assembly B111 No. 315

ThlS bill, 1ntroduced in the Assembly on March 3, 1958 ‘would establlsh
-a tax court and transfer the Jurlsdlctlon, offlcers) and employees of the D1v1-‘
sion of Tax Appeals to that court The-tax court con51st1ng of'31x Judges
app01nted for seven-year terms at a salary of" $18 000 per year, would be estab- .
lished as an 1nferlor court of llmlted Jurlsdlctlon. It would contlnue members
of the present Division of Tax Appeals as Judges of the tax court Adm1351on
to practlce ‘of law in the State_for‘at least 10 years would‘be required of each
judge. Under the bill the Chief Justice Of-thelSupreme3Court may from timtho
time assign judges‘of the Superior Court to the tam court as need appears, and
may from time to time assign Judges of' the tax court to the Superlor Court or to

' any other court as the need appears,
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State Chamber Proposal

Attached to this statement are draffs of three bills which would:
abolish the Division of Tax Appeals and tfansfer.its employeés;

provide that appeals from the county boards or from the Director,
Division of Taxation, be taken directly to the Superior Court,
Law Division, it being contemplated that the Supreme Court would
by rule establish a separate Tax Part of the Law Division, con-
sisting of three judges, to specialize in tax cases; and

enlarge the Superior Court accordingly.

Position of the
State Chamber of Commerce

On November 6, 1958, the New Jersey State Chamber of Commerce in a letter
to the members of the New Jersey State Senate expressed its opposition to
Assembly Biil No. 323, just as in prior years it had expressed its opposition
to similar bills, Today we reiterate that opposition.

The State Chamber objects to the proposal in Assembly Bill No, 323 that
the president have the power to assign each appeal for hearing and determination
to one or aﬁ his discretion to a panel of three members of the Division, for the
following reasons: o |

1. Tt would permit the final factual determination on all tax
appeals, both on the problem of valuation of property and on
the question of discrimination, to be made by one member of
an administrative tribunal (or, at the discretion of the
president, by three members). This would be the only full
trial on the merits available to a taxpayer. On appeal to
the Appellate Division, there is no trial de novo., For all=
practical purposes, unless the Division member was arbitrary
or unless evidence to support his findings was entirely lacking
his determination as to matters of fact would not be disturbed.

2. The proposalbwould eliminate the additional consideration

available at present from the full Division and the greater
objectivity which the full Division would tend to provide.
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Nor would the State Chamberfs objections be Q&ércome by the issuance of
rules by the Division which would indicate the circumstances under which, at the
Divisionts discretion,.a‘panel of three members would be used rather than a single
- member,

Also objectionable are the elimination of the requiremenm that the attbrneys
be attorneys "of at least ten years! standing" and the requirement that "members
shall be chosen because of their special Qualifications, knowlédge and experience
in matters concerning the valuation and taxation of property, particularly of
real property".

Howevef, we do feél that steps must be taken to iﬁfuse the tax_éppeals
procedure at the State level in New Jersey with more expeditious and impartial
treatment for all litigants.

Strict compliénce ﬁith the present statute would seem to provide the
avenue for scmewhat more expeditious handling éf the cases. It provides that
"the members, including the president, shall devote such time as shall be re-
quired for the efficient performénce of the duties of the office".

To expedite matters still further and to achieve impartiality we are con-
vinced that we must look elsewhere. For ££is reason the State Chamber favors
either the attached legislation which would abolish the Division of Tax Appeals
and provide in lieu thereof that appeals be taken directly to the Spperior Court,
Law Division, or the proposal of the Bar Associamionbin Assembly Bill No. 315,

To quote again the Newark News editorial of January 30, 1958:

The Legislature could create a separate statutory court or the
Supreme Court could create a new division of Superior Court., In
either case, the judges would be under the supervision of the
chief justice, whose power of assignment would permit him to
adjust the court's personnel to the volume of its work,

The bar association's remedy, now being discussed with representa-
tives of the three branches of government, is logical and adheres
to the doctrine of separation of powers. It should be fully ex-
plored before any attempt is made to salvage the existing system
which, even if it worked more efficiently, would remain basically
unsound. :






SENATOR LANCE: Does anyoﬁe else desire to speak?  Mr,
Labreque,

MR, LABREQUE: As I said, gentlemen, this bill that is
presently before the House may not be the ultimate solution,
but it is the feelingvof the Division that it is a practical
solution and one which has been, shall we say, half born already
and which it is possible to pags to give us relief at the present
time, We don't want to be in the unfortunate position of the
patient who dies on the operating tabie while a discussion is
being had cOﬁcerning which tools to us, We have to live and we
are présently faced with the filing, we feel at least, of as
- many appeals as we had last year or more. We have'been working
on this thing very hard for the last two years, That is why
last year we favored the Deamer Bill, although we werenﬂt
sure that that was the ultimate solution, but at least that
emerged and it was part way down the alley and we thought it,might
make a strike so we were willing to go out and suppoft it. And
we thought it would help. DBut the situation is such now that we
think it is going to take ﬁﬁdh more than that.,

While we favor 323 and we think that it should be given a
try and it will probably work to‘the satisfaction of all concerned,
we don't want to bhe in the position of saying that we are
particﬁlariy against any remédyo As a matter of fact, quite the
opposite is true and any remedy which you gentlemen can propose
and give/it to uSVpromptly, we wouid.like to have, I read with
interest what the State Chamber of Commerce had to saywﬁﬁmerning
the bill of the State Bar Associatién or,as has beén more recently

suggested, to set up a Tax Division in the Superior Court.
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Both of them have merit and both of them have many,;mény
advantages. But thé idea is that our problem is now; and

we are talking about living today. You will see how this works
out and i£ may be that that will be the ultimate solﬁtion you
will want to sustain., Certainly, as far.as we are Canernéd, the
debate has not béen that we favor or have’thoﬁght up any particular
bill, The debate is that we feel that we need help for the
benefit of the people of the stéte whom we are all trying to
’servé'aﬁd that is why we feel that now this is the way that will
give the quickest and best relief. If we are géing to have a
court, the State Bar bill presents that situation, or, as many
people  say, why set up a new court when you already have a
Superior -Court and Jjust add some members to it and let them
handle the situation., It is a matter for you gentlemen, but )

we are trying to urge on you the ﬁrgency of it.

SENATOR LANCE: The State League of Municipalities had their
\annual convention last week, Now they are not represented here
today. I don't know whether the State League of Municipalities
took a positién or they did not, |

MR. LABREQUE: Thank you, sir.

SENATOR LANCE: Thevhearing stands adjourned and we thank
‘everybody for atiendinga
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